
278 OPINIONS OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Training School at Fort Assinniboine. and such departments of 
said institutions as may hereafter be organized. shall constitute 
the University of Montana. under the name and style of University 
of Montana." 

It is to be observed that any other institution. such as any junior 
college. does not come within the above provisions and. therefore. 
fees for attendance at such schools are not. by law. required to be 
waived. 

It is therefore my opinion that under the provisions of Sections 
10-110 and 10-111. Revised Codes of Montana. 1947. that fees for at­
tendance at the units of the University of Montana must be waived 
for inmates of the Montana. State Orphans' Home. the State Industrial 
School. and the State Vocational School for Girls and that fees at any 
other institutions need not be waived for such inmates. 

Opinion No. 104 

Very truly yours. 
ARNOLD H. OLSEN. 
A ttorney General. 

County Auditor - County Clerk and Recorder - Consolidation of 
County Offices-Term of Office. 

Held: 1. The offices of County Clerk and Recorder and County Audi­
tor may not be consolidated. 

Mr. Robert F. Swanberg 
County Attorney 
Missoula County 
Missoula. Montana 

Dear Mr. Swanberg: 

April 17th. 1950. 

You have requested my opmlOn on the question of whether the 
Board of County Commissioners of Missoula County may consolidate 
the offices of County Auditor and County Clerk and Recorder. 

The authority for the consolidation of county offices is contained in 
Section 5 of Article XVI of the Montana Constitution. Section 5 is as 
follows: 

"There shall be elected in each County the following County 
officers who shall possess the qualifications for suffrage prescribed 
by Section 2 of Article IX of this Constitution and such other quali­
fications as may be prescribed by law: 

One County Clerk who shall be Clerk of the Board of County 
Commissioners and ex-officio Recorder; one Sheriff; one Treasurer. 
who shall be collector of taxes. provided that the County Treas-
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urer, shall not be eligible to his office for the succeeding termi one 
County Superintendent of Schoolsi one County Surveyori one As­
sessori one Coroneri one Public Administrator. Persons elected 
to the different offices named in this Section shall hold their re­
spective offices for the term of four (4) years and until their suc­
cessors are elected and qualified. Vacancies in all County, Town­
ship and Precinct offices, except that of County Commissioners, 
shall be filled by appointment by the Board of County Commis­
sioners, and the appointee shall hold his office until the next gen­
eral electioni provided, however, that the Board of County Com­
missioners of any County may, in its discretion, consolidate any 
two or more of the within named offices and combine the powers 
and the duties of the said offices consolidatedi however, the pro­
visions hereof shall not be construed as allowing one (l) office in­
cumbent to be entitled to the salaries and emoluments of two (2) 
or more officesi provided, further, that in consolidating County 
offices, the Board of County Commissioners shalL six (6) months 
prior to the general election held for the purpose of electing the 
aforesaid offices, make and enter an order, combining any two 
(2) or more of the within named offices, and shall cause the said 
order to be published in a newspaper, published and circulated 
generally in said County, for a period of six (6) weeks next follow­
ing the date of entry of said order." 

Sections 16-2501 through 16-2507, Revised Codes of Montana, 1947, 
set forth the procedure to be followed in consolidating County offices. 
Section 16-2501, supra, is as follows in part: 

"At any time not later than seven (7) months before the date 
of any general election at which any of the County officers en­
numerated in Section five of Article XVI of the Constitution of this 
State are to be elected, a petition in writing may be filed with the 
Board of County Commissioners of a County asking for the con­
solidation of any two or more of said offices by the Board of 
County Commissioners of such County .... " 

It will be noted that Section 5 of Article XVI of the Constitution pro­
vides that any two or more of the "within named" offices may be con­
solidated. The office of County Auditor is not one of the offices named 
in Section 5. The office of County Auditor is not a Constitutional of­
fice but rather was created by act of the legislature in 1891. 

Section 16-2501, supra, also provides that any of the offices "en­
numerated in Section five of Article XVI" may be consolidated. Sec­
tion 16-2501 was enacted by the legislature in 1935, some forty-five 
years after the _office of County Auditor had been created, and if it had 
been the intention of the legislature that the office of County Auditor 
be included among those offices that may be consolidated, it would 
have used more appropriate and definite language. By limiting the 
offices which may be consolidated to those ennumerated in Section 5 
of Article XVI of the Constitution, the framers of the Constitution and 
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the lawmakers have definitely excluded the office of County Auditor 
from the list of offices that may be consolidated. 

In addition to the absence of Constitutional and Statutory author­
ity for consolidating the office of County Auditor with another County 
office there is a further difficulty that is present in the instant situation. 
Section 5 of Article XVI of the Constitution provides that the County 
Clerk and Recorder shall hold office for a term of four years. The of­
fice of County Auditor was created under the authority of Section 6 of 
Article XVI of the Constitution. State ex reI. McGinnis v. Dickinson, 
26 Mont. 391, 68 Pac. 468. Section 6 of Article XVI provides that the 
terms of all offices created thereby shall be as prescribed by law, and 
shall not in any case exceed two years. Thus, although Section 16-
3203, Revised Codes of Montana, 1947, provides that the term of office 
of the County Auditor shall be four years, such provision of Section 16-
3203 is rendered inoperative by virtue of the limitation imposed by 
Section 6 of Article XVI. The term of office of the County Auditor can 
only be for two years. Volume 4, Page 434 and Volume 23, Opinion 
No. 96, Reports and Official Opinions of Attorney General. 

The law does not provide for and I know of no procedure to be 
followed in consolidating a two year office with a four year office. Any 
decision to set the term of such consolidated office, whether it be for a 
two year or a four year term, would be arbitrary and without support 
in law. 

For the reasons above stated, I am of the opinion that the offices 
of County Clerk and Recorder and County Auditor may not be con­
solidated. 

Opinion No. 105 

Very truly yours, 
ARNOLD H. OLSEN, 
Attorney General. 

Montana State College-University of Montana-Veterans-World 
War II, Termination of Hostilities-

Held: 1. The exemption from fees and tuition at all units of the Uni­
versity of Montana provided for by Section 77-901. Revised 
Codes of Montana, 1947, shall apply to all honorably dis­
charged persons who served with the United States forces in 
any of its wars and who were bona-fide residents of the State of 
Montana at the time of their entry into the United States forces. 
Incismuch as World War II has never been officially con­
cluded, any. person, otherwise qualified, who serves in the 
United States forces before a treaty of peace ends the present 
state of war, shall, in the absence of future action by the Mon­
tana Legislature, be eligible for the benefits provided for by the 
said Section 77-901. Revised Codes of Montana, 1947. 

April 19th, 1950. 
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